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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT AUDITORS

To the Board of Commissioners of the
Housing Authority of the Township of North Bergen:

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the Housing Authority of the Township of North Bergen
(the "Authority") as of and for the year ended June 30, 2021, and the related notes to the financial statements,
which collectively comprise the Authority's basic financial statements, as listed in the table of contents.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the design,
implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditors' Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our
audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the standards
applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of
the United States and audit requirements as prescribed by the Division of Local Government Services, Department
of Community Affairs, State of New Jersey. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditors' judgment, including the assessment of the
risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk
assessments, the auditors consider internal control relevant to the Authority’s preparation and fair presentation of
the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for
the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Authority’s internal control. Accordingly, we
express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion.




Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the net position of
the Authority as of June 30, 2021, and the changes in its net position and its cash flows for the year then ended in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Other Matters

Required Supplementary Information

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the management’s discussion
and analysis and required pension and other post employment benefit information be presented to supplement the
basic financial statements. Such information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by
the Governmental Accounting Standards Board who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for
placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. We have
applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance with auditing
standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the
methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for consistency with management’s responses
to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic
financial statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the limited
procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance.

Other Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the financial statements that collectively
comprise the Authority's basic financial statements. The schedule of expenditures of federal awards is presented for
the purpose of additional analysis as required by Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform
Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards and is not a required
part of the basic financial statements. The accompanying financial data schedule is also not a required part of the
basic financial statements and is presented for the purposes of additional analysis as required by the U.S.
Department of Housing and Urban Development.

The schedule of expenditures of federal awards and financial data schedule are the responsibility of management
and were derived from and relate directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic
financial statements. Such information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the
basic financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information
directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements or to the
basic financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards
generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the schedule of expenditures of federal awards
and financial data schedule are fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to the basic financial statements as a
whole.



Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated March 18, 2022 on our
consideration of the Authority's internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance with
certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that
report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the
results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on internal control over financial reporting or on compliance.
That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in
considering the Authority's internal control over financial reporting and compliance.
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March 18, 2022
Toms River, New Jersey
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HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE TOWNSHIP OF NORTH BERGEN
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
June 30, 2021

As Management of the Housing Authority of the Township of North Bergen (the
“Authority”), we offer readers of the Authority’s financial statements this narrative
overview and analysis of the financial activities of the Authority for the fiscal year ended
June 30, 2021. We encourage readers to consider the information presented here in
conjunction with the Authority’s financial statements as presented elsewhere in this
Report.

A. Financial Highlights

1. The Authority's assets and deferred outflows of resources exceeded its
liabilities and deferred inflows of resources at the close of the most recent
fiscal year by $3,833,228 (net position) as opposed to $1,541,072 for the prior
fiscal year.

2. As of the close of the current fiscal year, the Authority reported ending
unrestricted net position (deficit) of ($12,964,973).

3. The Authority’s cash and cash equivalents balance (including restricted cash)
at June 30, 2021 was $4,572,078, representing an increase of $435,015 from
the prior fiscal year.

4. The Authority had total operating revenues of $18,718,702 and total operating
expenses of $17,943,151 for the year ended June 30, 2021.

5. The Authority’s capital outlays for the fiscal year were $1,558,482.

6. The Authority's Expenditures of Federal Awards amounted to $13,809,996 for
the fiscal year.

7. In accordance with GASB 68 the Authority recorded a net pension liability of
$4,453,195, $979,600 in deferred outflows of resources and $2,144,500 of
deferred inflows of resources.

8. In accordance with GASB 75 the Authority recorded a net OPEB liability of
$9,472,761, $3,290,378 in deferred outflows of resources and $5,107,320 of
deferred inflows of resources.



HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE TOWNSHIP OF NORTH BERGEN
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
June 30, 2021

B. Using the Annual Report

1. Management'’s Discussion and Analysis

The Management's Discussion and Analysis is intended to serve as an
introduction to the Authority’s basic financial statements. The Authority’s
Basic Financial Statements and Notes to Financial Statements included in
this Report were prepared in accordance with Generally Accepted Accounting
Principles (“GAAP") applicable to governmental entities in the United States
of America for Proprietary Fund types.

2. Basic Financial Statements

The basic financial statements are designed to provide readers with a broad
overview of the Authority’s finances, in a manner similar to a private-sector
business. They consist of Statement of Net Position, Statement of Revenues,
Expenses and Change in Net Position and Statement of Cash Flows.

The Statement of Net Position presents information on all the Authority’s
assets and deferred outflows of resources and liabilities and deferred inflows
of resources, with the difference between the two reported as net position.
Increases or decreases in net position will serve as a useful indicator of
whether the financial position of the Authority is improving or deteriorating.

The Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position presents
information showing how the Authority’s net position changed during the most
recent fiscal year. All changes in net position are reported as soon as the
underlying event giving rise to the change occurs, regardless of the timing of
related cash flows. Thus, revenues and expenses are reported in this
statement for some items that will only result in cash flows in future fiscal
periods (e.g., depreciation and earned but unused vacation leave).

The Statement of Cash Flows reports the cash flows from operating,
investing, capital and related financing activities.

The Basic Financial Statements report on the Authority’s activities. The
activities are primarily supported by HUD subsidies and grants. The
Authority’s function is to provide decent, safe and sanitary housing to low
income and special needs populations. The Basic Financial Statements can
be found on pages 11 through 15 in this Report.



HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE TOWNSHIP OF NORTH BERGEN
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
June 30, 2021

B. Using the Annual Report (continued)

3. Notes to Financial Statements

The Notes to Financial Statements provide additional information that is
essential to a full understanding of the data provided in the Basic Financial
Statements. The Notes to Financial Statements can be found in this Report
after the Basic Financial Statements.

4. Supplemental Information

The Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards is presented for purposes of
additional analysis as required by Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations
Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit
Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance). The Schedule of
Expenditures of Federal Awards can be found on page 38 of this report.

The required pension information is presented for purposes of additional
analysis. The schedule of Authority contributions for the last ten fiscal years
and the schedule of the Authority’s proportionate share of their net pension
liability for the last ten fiscal years can be found on page 43 of this report.

The required OPEB information is presented for purposes of additional
analysis. The schedule of Authority contributions for the last ten fiscal years
and the schedule of the Authority’s proportionate share of their net OPEB
liability for the last ten fiscal years can be found on page 44 of this report.

The Financial Data Schedule (FDS) was created in order to standardize the
financial information reported by Public Housing Authorities (PHA) to the
Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD), Real Estate
Assessment Center (REAC). REAC currently requires PHAs to report their
accounting information using GAAP based on either governmental or
enterprise fund accounting. REAC will use the FDS to analyze the PHA
financial data, in conjunction with other performance measurements, to help
ensure the success of the PHA programs. The FDS can be found on pages
45 through 52 of this report.



HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE TOWNSHIP OF NORTH BERGEN
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
June 30, 2021

The Authority as a Whole

The Authority’s Net Position increased during the fiscal year as detailed in the
table below. The Authority’'s revenues are primarily subsidies and grants
received from HUD and tenant rent. The Authority receives subsidies each
month based on a pre-approved amount by HUD. Grants are drawn down based
on need against a pre-authorized funding level. The Authority’s revenues were
insufficient to cover all expenses during the fiscal year.

By far, the largest portion of the Authority’s net position reflects its investment in
capital assets (e.g., land, buildings, equipment and construction in progress).
The Authority uses these capital assets to provide housing services to its
tenants, consequently, these assets are not available for future spending.

Computations of Net Position are as follows:

As of
6/30/2021 6/30/2020
Cash and Other Assets $5,233,110 $4,569,511
Capital Assets - Net 16,716,796 16,510,798
Deferred Outflows of Resources 4,269,978 1,032,738
Total Assets and Deferred Outflows 26,219,884 22,113,047
Less: Total Liabilities and Deferred
Inflows of Resources 22,386,656 20,571,975
Net Position $ 3,833,228 $ 1,541,072
Net Investment in Capital Assets $16,716,796 $16,510,798
Restricted Net Position 81,405 69,105
Unrestricted Net Position (deficit) (12,964,973) (15,038,831)
Net Position $ 3,833,228 $ 1,541,072




HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE TOWNSHIP OF NORTH BERGEN
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
June 30, 2021

C. The Authority as a Whole (continued)

Computations of Changes in Net Position are as follows:

As of
Revenues 6/30/2021 6/30/2020
Tenant Revenues $4,730,183 $4,608,602
HUD Operating Grants 10,990,822 8,957,306
Other Revenues 2,997,697 3,900,181
Total Operating Revenues 18,718,702 17,466,089
Expenses
Other Operating Expenses 10,868,975 10,863,252
Housing Assistance Payments 5,721,692 5,020,384
Depreciation Expense 1,352,484 1,451,087
Total Operating Expenses 17,943,151 17,434,723
Operating Income (Loss) 775,551 31,366
Non-Operating Revenues:
Interest on Investments 4,333 41,576
HUD Capital Grants 1,612,272 445,085
Net Non-operating Revenues 2,516,605 486,661
Change in Net Position 2,292,156 518,027
Net Position - Beginning of Year 1,541,072 1,023,045
Net Position - End of Year $3,833,228 $1,541,072




HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE TOWNSHIP OF NORTH BERGEN
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
June 30, 2021

The Authority as a Whole (continued)

Cash and Cash Equivalents (including restricted cash) increased by $435,015,
primarily due to the Authority receiving more revenues from HUD operating and
capital grants during the year ended June 30, 2021.

HUD Operating Grants increased by $1,033,516, primarily due to increases in
funding from the prior year in the Section 8 Housing Choice Vouchers Program,
Public and Indian Housing Program, and operating grants related to the Capital
Fund Program in the amounts of $514,704, $49,196, and $83,013, respectively.

Operating Expenses increased to $17,943,151 in 2021 from $17,434,723 in
2020, or $508,428 over the prior fiscal year. Significant line item increases/
decreases over the prior fiscal are as follows:

1) Administrative costs decreased from $5,589,747 in 2020 to
$4,309,357 in 2021, or $1,280,390. This was primarily due to
decreases in employee benefits associated with pension and OPEB
expense in fiscal year 2021.

2) Ordinary repairs and maintenance expenses increased from
$1,467,689 in 2020 to $2,775,853 in 2021, or $1,308,164, primarily
due to increases contract costs.

3) Housing assistance payments expense increased $701,309 as the
Authority had 286 more unit months leased in fiscal year 2021.

Budgetary Highlights

For the year ended June 30, 2021, individual program or grant budgets were
prepared by the Authority and were approved by the Board of Commissioners.
The budgets were primarily used as a management tool. Also, the Authority
adopted a comprehensive annual budget for the General Fund. The budgets
were prepared in accordance with the accounting procedures prescribed by the
applicable funding agency.



HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE TOWNSHIP OF NORTH BERGEN
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
June 30, 2021

Capital Assets and Debt Administration

. Capital Assets

As of June 30, 2021, the Authority’s net investment in capital assets for its
Proprietary Fund was $16,716,796. This investment in capital assets includes
land, buildings, equipment and construction in progress less accumulated
depreciation.

Major capital assets purchased amounted to $1,558,482, of which $1,512,272
pertained to expenditures made in accordance with the Authority’s Capital Fund
Program. These activities are funded by grants from HUD.

Additional information on the Authority’s capital assets can be found in the Notes
to the Financial Statements, which is included in this Report.

. Long Term Debt

The Authority does not have any interest bearing long-term debt at this time.

Economic Factors and Next Year's Budget and Rates

The following factors were considered in preparing the Authority’s budget for the
fiscal year ending June 30, 2022 and beyond:

. The potential for reduction in HUD subsidies and the possible recapture of
reserves.

. The use of the Authority’s current reserves to fund shortfalls rising from a
possible economic downturn and reduced subsidies and grants.

Contacting the Authority’s Financial Management

The financial report is designed to provide a general overview of the Authority’'s
finances for all those with an interest. Questions concerning any of the
information provided in this report or requests for additional financial information
should be addressed to Mr. Gerald Sanzari, Executive Director, Housing
Authority of the Township of North Bergen, 6121 Grand Ave, North Bergen, New
Jersey 07047, or call (201) 868-8605.
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HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE TOWNSHIP OF NORTH BERGEN
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

AS OF JUNE 30, 2021
ASSETS
Current assets:

Cash and cash equivalents $ 4,121,240
Tenant security deposits 353,034
Accounts receivable, net 495,076
Inventories 10,000
Prepaid expenses 155,056
Total current assets 5.135.306

Non-current assets:
Restricted cash 97,804
Capital assets, net 16,716,796
Total non-current assets 16,814,600
Total assets 21 06

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES

State of New Jersey P.E.R.S. 979,600
State of New Jersey S.H.B.P. 3,200,378
Deferred outflows of resources 4.269.978
Total assets and deferred outflows of resources $___26.210,884

See accompanying notes to financial statements
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HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE TOWNSHIP OF NORTH BERGEN

STATEMENT OF NET POSITION (continued)

AS OF JUNE 30, 2021

LIABILITIES

Current liabilities:
Accounts payable
Accounts payable - other government
Accrued expenses
Accrued compensated absences, current
Tenant security deposits
Unearned revenues
Other current liabilities

Total current liabilities
Non-current liabilities:
Accrued compensated absences, non-current
Accrued pension liability
Accrued OPEB liability
Total non-current liabilities

Total liabilities

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES

State of New Jersey P.E.R.S.
State of New Jersey S.H.B.P.

Total deferred inflows of resources

NET POSITION
Net position:
Net investment in capital assets
Restricted
Unrestricted (deficit)
Total net position

Total liabilities, deferred inflows of resources
and net position

See accompanying notes to financial statements
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$ 88,270
294,896
265,577

19,108

353,034
262
—_—15.745
1,036,892
171,088
4,453,195
9,472,761
14,097,944

15.134.836

2,144,500
5,107,320

7.251,820

16,716,796
81,405
(12,964.973)

3.833,228

$___26,210.884



HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE TOWNSHIP OF NORTH BERGEN

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND
CHANGES IN NET POSITION
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021

Operating revenues:
Tenant revenue
HUD operating grants
Other revenues

Total operating revenues
Operating expenses:
Administrative
Tenant services
Utilities
Ordinary repairs and maintenance
Protective services
Insurance
General expenses
Housing assistance payments
Depreciation
Total operating expenses
Operating income

Non-operating revenues:
Investment income

Net non-operating revenues
Income before capital grants
Capital grants
Change in net position
Total net position, beginning of year

Total net position, end of year

See accompanying notes to financial statements

13

$ 4,730,183
10,990,822
2,997,697

18718702
4,309,357
219,967
1,905,607
2,775,853
985,670
298,315
374,206
5,721,602

1352484

1 151

— 773,301

— 4333
—_—4.333
779,884
1,512 272
2,202,156

1,.541.072

$___32.833.228



HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE TOWNSHIP OF NORTH BERGEN
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021

Cash Flows from Operating Activities:

Cash received from tenants $ 7,539,324
Cash received from grantors 10,933,850
Cash paid to employees (4,175,190)
Cash paid to vendors _(13.821.092)
Net cash provided by operating activities 476.892
Cash Flows from Capital and Related Financing Activities:
Purchase of capital assets (1,558,482)
Proceeds from capital grants 15129272
Net cash used in capital and related financing activities (46,210)
Cash Flows from Investing Activities:
Interest received on investments 4,333
Net cash provided by investing activities 4.333
Net increase in cash, cash equivalents, and restricted cash 435,015
Cash, cash equivalents, and restricted cash, beginning of year 4,137,063
Cash, cash equivalents and restricted cash, end of year $_  4572,078

Reconciliation of cash, cash equivalents and restricted cash to the
Statement of Net Position is as follows:

Cash and cash equivalents $ 4,121,240
Tenant security deposits 353,034
Restricted cash 97.804
Cash, cash equivalents, and restricted cash, at end of year $  4572,078

See accompanying notes to financial statements
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HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE TOWNSHIP OF NORTH BERGEN

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (continued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021

Reconciliation of operating income to net cash provided by

operating activities:
Operating income

Adjustments to reconcile operating income to net cash
provided by operating activities:
Depreciation

Changes in operating assets, liabilities, deferred outflows
and deferred inflows of resources:
Accounts receivable
Prepaid expenses
Inventory
Pension liability
OPEB liability
Accounts payable
Accrued expenses
Accrued compensated absences
Security deposits
Unearned revenues
Deferred outflows of resources
Deferred inflows of resources

Net cash provided by operating activities

See accompanying notes to financial statements

$ 775,551

1,352,484

(204,986)

(13,598)

(10,000)

(271,541)
2,810,668

(227,735)
134,167
82,065
16,224
206

(3,237,240)

2

$ 476.892



NOTE 1.

HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE TOWNSHIP OF NORTH BERGEN
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
A. Organization

The Housing Authority of the Township of North Bergen (the "Authority") is a governmental,
public corporation created under federal and state housing laws as defined by State statute
(N.J.S.A. 4A: 12A-1, et. Seq., the “Housing Authority Act”) for the purpose of engaging in the
development, acquisition and administrative activities of the low-income housing program and
other programs with similar objectives for low and moderate income families residing in the
Township of North Bergen (the "Township"”). The Authority is responsible for operating certain
low-rent housing programs administered by the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban
Development ("HUD"). These programs provide housing for eligible families under the United
States Housing Act of 1937, as amended.

The Authority is governed by a board of commissioners which is essentially autonomous, but is
responsible to HUD and the State of New Jersey Department of Community Affairs. An executive
director is appointed by the Authority’s board of commissioners to manage the day-to-day
operations of the Authority.

B. Basis of Accounting / Financial Statement Presentation

The Authority's financial statements are prepared in accordance with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America (GAAP). The Governmental Accounting
Standards Board (GASB) is responsible for establishing GAAP for state and local governments
through its pronouncements (Statements and Interpretations).

The programs of the Authority are organized as separate accounting entities. Each program is
accounted for by a separate set of self-balancing accounts that comprise its assets, deferred
outflows of resources, liabilities, deferred inflows of resources, net position (program equity),
revenues, and expenses. The individual programs account for the governmental resources
allocated to them for the purpose of carrying on specific programs in accordance with laws,
regulations, or other restrictions, including those imposed by HUD. The programs of the Authority
are combined and considered an enterprise fund. An enterprise fund is used to account for
activities that are operated in a manner similar to those found in the private sector.

The Authority's enterprise fund is accounted for using the economic resources measurement focus
and the accrual basis of accounting. Revenues, expenses, gains, and losses from assets and
liabilities resulting from exchange and exchange-like transactions are recognized when the
exchange takes place.

The Authority's financial statements are prepared in accordance with GASB 34, Basic Financial
Statements and Management's Discussion and Analysis for State and Local Governments
("GASB 34"), as amended. GASB 34 requires the basic financial statements to be prepared using
the economic resources measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting and requires the
presentation of a Statement of Net Position, a Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in
Net Position and Statement of Cash Flows. GASB 34 also requires the Authority to include
Management's Discussion and Analysis as part of the Required Supplementary Information.
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NOTE 1.

HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE TOWNSHIP OF NORTH BERGEN
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
B. Basis of Accounting / Financial Statement Presentation (continued)

The Authority's primary source of non-exchange revenue relates to grants and subsidies. In
accordance with GASB 33, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Non-exchange Transactions,
("GASB 33") grant and subsidy revenue is recognized at the time eligible program expenditures
occur and/or the Authority has complied with the grant and subsidy requirements.

On January 30, 2008, HUD issued PIH Notice 2008-9 which requires that unused housing
assistance payments ("HAP") under proprietary fund reporting should be reported as restricted
net position, with the associated cash and investments also being reported on HUD's Financial
Data Schedule ("FDS") as restricted. Any unused administrative fees should be reported as
unrestricted net position, with the associated assets being reported on the FDS as unrestricted.

Both administrative fee and HAP revenue continue to be recognized under the guidelines set forth
in GASB 33. Accordingly, both the time and purpose restrictions, as defined by GASB 33, are met
when these funds are available and measurable, not when these funds are expended. The Section 8
Housing Choice Vouchers program is no longer a cost reimbursement grant; therefore, the
Authority recognizes unspent administrative fee and HAP revenue in the reporting period as
revenue for financial statement reporting.

In accordance with 2 CFR 200.305(b)(9), any investment income earned up to $500 on these
funds may be retained by the Authority. Amounts in excess of $500 must be remitted annually to
the Department of Health and Human Services, Payment Management System.

C. Reporting Entity

In accordance with GASB 61, The Financial Reporting Entity Omnibus - An Amendment of GASB
Statement No. 14 and No. 34, the Authority’s basic financial statements include those of the
Authority and any component units. Component units are legally separate organizations whose
majority of officials are appointed by the primary government or the organization is fiscally
dependent on the primary government and there is a potential for those organizations either to
provide specific financial benefits to, or impose specific financial burdens on, the primary
government.

An organization has a financial benefit or burden relationship with the primary government if any
one of the following conditions exist:

1 The primary government (Authority) is legally entitled to or can otherwise access the
organization's resources.

2, The primary government is legally obligated or has otherwise assumed the obligation to
finance the deficits of, or provide financial support to, the organization.

3. The primary government is obligated in some manner for the debt of the organization.
Based on the application of the above criteria, this report includes all programs and activities
operated by the Authority. There were no additional entities required to be included in the

reporting entity under these criteria in the current fiscal year. Furthermore, the Authority is not
included in any other reporting entity on the basis of such criteria.

17



NOTE 1.

HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE TOWNSHIP OF NORTH BERGEN
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
D. Description of Programs

The Authority maintains its accounting records by program. A summary of the significant
programs operated by the Authority is as follows:

Public and Indian Housing Program
The Public and Indian Housing Program is designed to provide low-cost housing within the

Township. Under this program, HUD provides funding via an annual contributions contract.
These funds, combined with the rental income received from tenants, are available solely to meet
the operating expenses of the program.

Section 8 Housing Choice Vouchers

The Authority administers a program of rental assistance payments to private owners on behalf of
eligible low-income families under Section 8 of the Housing and Urban Development Act of 1974.
The program provides payments covering the difference between the maximum rental on a
dwelling unit, as approved by HUD, and the amount of rent contribution by a participating family.

Public Housing Capital Fund Program
The purpose of the Public Housing Capital Fund Program is to provide another source of funding

to cover the cost of physical and management improvements and rehabilitation on existing low-
income housing and improving the central office facilities. Funding for this program is provided
by grants from HUD.

Resident Opportunity and Supportive Services Program / Service rdinators ("ROSS"

The purpose of the ROSS Service Coordinator program is to provide funding to hire and maintain
Service Coordinators who will assess the needs of residents of conventional Public Housing or
Indian housing and coordinate available resources in the community to meet those needs. This
program works to promote the development of local strategies to coordinate the use of assistance
under the Public Housing program with public and private resources, for supportive services and
resident empowerment activities. These services should enable participating families to increase
earned income, reduce or eliminate the need for welfare assistance, make progress toward
achieving economic independence and housing self-sufficiency, or, in the case of elderly or
disabled residents, help improve living conditions and enable residents to age-in-place.

Mainstream Vouchers
The purpose of the mainstream vouchers program is to aid non-elderly persons with disabilities in
obtaining decent, safe, and sanitary rental housing.

CARES Act Funding Programs
During the year ended June 30, 2021, the Authority was awarded CARES Act funding as part of

the Public and Indian Housing Program and Section 8 Housing Choice Vouchers Program. These
funds are to be used to prevent, prepare for, and respond to the Coronavirus ("COVID-19"), as well
as help the Authority maintain normal operations during the period impacted by COVID-19.
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NOTE 1.

HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE TOWNSHIP OF NORTH BERGEN
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
E. Use of Management Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in accordance with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America requires management to make estimates and
assumptions that affect certain reported amounts of assets, deferred outflows of resources,
liabilities and deferred inflows of resources, and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at
the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during
the reporting period. Significant estimates include the allowance for doubtful accounts, accrued
expenses and other liabilities, depreciable lives of properties and equipment, amortization of
leasehold improvements and contingencies. Actual results could differ significantly from these
estimates.

F. Cash and Cash Equivalents

New Jersey Authorities are required by N.J.S.A. 40A:5-14 to deposit public funds in a bank or
trust company having its place of business in the State of New Jersey and organized under the
laws of the United States, or the State of New Jersey, or the New Jersey Cash Management Fund.
N.J.S.A. 40A:5-15.1 provides a list of securities which may be purchased by New Jersey
Authorities. The Authority is required to deposit funds in public depositories protected from loss
under the provisions of the Governmental Unit Deposit Protection Act ("GUDPA"). GUDPA was
enacted in 1970 to protect governmental units from a loss of funds on deposit with a failed
banking institution in New Jersey.

N.J.S.A. 17:9-42 requires governmental units to deposit public funds only in public depositories
located in New Jersey, when the funds are secured in accordance with the act.

HUD requires housing authorities to invest excess funds in obligations of the United States,
Certificates of Deposit, or any other federally insured investment.

HUD also requires that deposits be fully collateralized at all times. Acceptable collateralization
includes FDIC insurance and the market value of securities purchased and pledged to the political
subdivision. Pursuant to HUD restrictions, obligations of the United States are allowed as
security for deposits. Obligations furnished as security must be held by the Authority or with an
unaffiliated bank or trust company for the account of the Authority.

For the Statement of Cash Flows, cash and cash equivalents include all cash balances and highly
liguid investments with a maturity of three months or less at time of purchase.

It is the Authority's policy to maintain collateralization in accordance with state and HUD
requirements.

G. Accounts Receivable, Net

Rents are due from tenants on the first day of each month. As a result, tenants receivable balances
primarily consist of rents past due and vacated units. An allowance for doubtful accounts is
established to provide for all accounts, which may not be collected in the future for any reason.
Collection losses on accounts receivable are charged against the allowance for doubtful accounts.
Also included in accounts receivable are those amounts that tenants owe the Authority as payment
for committing fraud or misrepresentation.
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NOTE 1.

HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE TOWNSHIP OF NORTH BERGEN
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

G. Accounts Receivable, Net (continued)

The Authority recognizes a receivable from HUD and other governmental agencies for amounts
billed but not received and for amounts unbilled, but earned as of year-end.

H. Inventories

Inventories represent the value of materials and equipment the Authority has on hand. As of June
30, 2021, inventories consist of air conditioners totaling $10,000, which is valued at cost using the
First-In First-Out method. If the inventories fall below cost due to damage, deterioration, or
obsolescence, the Authority will write down the inventories to its net realizable value through the
establishment of an allowance for obsolete inventories. Management has determined that an
allowance for obsolete inventories is not necessary as of June 30,2021.

1. Allowance for Doubtful Accounts

The Authority periodically reviews all accounts receivable to determine the amount, if any, that
may be uncollectable. If it is determined that an account or accounts may be uncollectable, the
Authority prepares an analysis of such accounts and records an appropriate allowance against
such amounts.

J. Prepaid Expenses

Prepaid expenses represent amounts paid as of year-end that will benefit future operations.

K. Inter-Program Receivables and Payables

Inter-program receivables/payables are current, and are the result of the use of the Public and
Indian Housing Program as the common paymaster for shared costs of the Authority. Cash
settlements are made periodically, and all inter-program balances net to zero. In accordance with
GASB 34, inter-program receivables and payables are eliminated for financial statement purposes;
however, they are reflected in the accompanying Financial Data Schedule as required by HUD.

L. Capital Assets, Net

Capital assets are stated at cost. Expenditures for repairs and maintenance are charged directly to
expenses as they are incurred. Expenditures determined to represent additions or betterments are
capitalized. Upon the sale or retirement of fixed assets, the cost and related accumulated
depreciation are eliminated from the accounts and any related gain or loss is reflected in the
Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position. Depreciation is calculated using
the straight-line method based on the estimated useful lives of the following asset groups:

. Dwelling and Non-Dwelling Equipment 5 Years
. Buildings 27.5 Years
. Building Improvements 10 Years

The Authority has established a capitalization threshold of $1,000.
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NOTE 1.

HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE TOWNSHIP OF NORTH BERGEN
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
M. Impairment of Long Lived Assets

The Authority evaluates events or changes in circumstances affecting long-lived assets to
determine whether an impairment of its assets has occurred. If the Authority determines that a
capital asset is impaired, and that impairment is significant and other-than-temporary, then an
impairment loss will be recorded in the Authority's financial statements. For the year ended June
30, 2021, there were no impairment losses.

N. Compensated Absences

Compensated absences represent amounts to which employees are entitled based on accumulated
leave earned in accordance with the Authority's Personnel Policy. Employees may be compensated
for accumulated vacation leave in the event of retirement or termination from service at the
current salary. Employees may be compensated for sick leave at retirement or termination at one
half of the earned sick leave at the current salary to a maximum of $5,000.

O. Prepaid Tenant Rents

The Authority's prepaid tenant rents primarily consist of the prepayment of rent by residents
applicable to future periods.

P. Operating Revenues and Expenses

The Authority defines its operating revenues as income derived from charges to residents and
others for services provided, as well as government subsidies and grants used for operating
purposes. Operating expenses are costs incurred in the operation of its program activities to
provide services to residents and others. The Authority classifies all other revenues and expenses
as non-operating.

Q. Taxes

The Authority is a unit of local government under New Jersey law and is exempt from real estate,
sales and income taxes.

R. Budgets and Budgetary Accounting

The Authority is required by contractual agreements to adopt annual, appropriated operating
budgets for all its programs receiving federal expenditure awards. All budgets are prepared on a
HUD basis, which is materially consistent with GAAP. All appropriations lapse at HUD's program
year end or at the end of grant periods. The Authority is also required to adopt and submit
annually to the State of New Jersey, Department of Community Affairs, an Authority wide budget
sixty (60) days prior to the start of the Authority's fiscal year.
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NOTE 1.

HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE TOWNSHIP OF NORTH BERGEN
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
S. Deferred Outflows / Inflows of Resources

In addition to assets, the statement of net position will sometimes report a separate section for
deferred outflows of resources. This separate financial statement element represents a
consumption of net position that applies to a future period and will not be recognized as an
outflow of resources until that time.

In addition to liabilities, the statement of net position will sometimes report a separate section for
deferred inflows of resources. This separate financial statement element represents an acquisition
of net position that applies to a future period and will not be recognized as an inflow of resources
until that time.

T. Pensions

For purposes of measuring the net pension liability, deferred outflows of resources and deferred
inflows of resources related to pensions and pension expense, information about the fiduciary net
position of the Public Employees Retirement System ("PERS") and additions to/deductions from
PERS's fiduciary net position have been determined on the same basis as they are reported by
PERS. For this purpose, benefit payments (including refunds of employee contributions) are
recognized when due and payable in accordance with the benefit terms. Investments are reported
at fair value.

U. Other Post Employment Benefits

For purposes of measuring the net OPEB liability, deferred outflows of resources and deferred
inflows of resources related to the net OPEB, and OPEB expense, and information about the
fiduciary net position of the State Health Benefits Plan ("SHBP") and additions to/deductions
from SHBP's fiduciary net position have been determined on the same basis as they are reported
by SHBP. For this purpose, benefit payments are recognized when due and payable in accordance
with the benefit terms.

V. Economic Dependency

The Section 8 Housing Choice Vouchers and Public and Indian Housing Programs of the
Authority are economically dependent on operating grants and subsidies from HUD. The
programs operate at a loss prior to receiving the grants.

W. Equity Classifications
Equity is classified as net position and displayed in three components:

Net investment in capital assets — Consists of capital assets including restricted capital assets, net
of accumulated depreciation and reduced by the outstanding balances of any bonds, mortgages,
notes, or other borrowings that are attributable to the acquisition, construction or improvement of
those assets.

Restricted net position — Consists of resources with constraints placed on the use either by (1)
external groups such as creditors, grantors, contributors, laws or regulations of other
governments; or (2) law through constitutional provisions or enabling legislation.

Unrestricted net position — All other resources that do not meet the definition of “restricted” or
“net investment in capital assets.”
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HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE TOWNSHIP OF NORTH BERGEN
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021

NOTE 2. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

As of June 30, 2021, the Authority had funds on deposit in checking, statements savings and
money market accounts. The carrying amount of the Authority's cash and cash equivalents
(including restricted deposits) was $4,572,078 and the bank balances approximated $4,657,200.

Cash Category Amount
Unrestricted $ 4,121,240
Tenant security deposits 353,034
Restricted 97.804

$_4.572,078

Of the bank balances, $250,000 was covered by federal depository insurance and the remaining
$4,407,200 was collateralized by GUDPA as of June 30, 2021.

Custodial credit risk is the risk that, in the event of a bank failure, the government's deposits may
not be returned to it. The Authority does not have a formal policy for custodial credit risk. As of
June 30, 2021, the Authority's bank balances were not exposed to custodial credit risk.

NOTE 3. ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE, NET

Accounts receivable, net consists of the following at June 30, 2021:

Description Amount
Accounts receivable - HUD $ 56,783
Accounts receivable - tenants, net 81,609
Accounts receivable - other government 24,944
Accounts receivable - miscellaneous 331,740
$_ 495,076

Accounts Receivable - HUD

As of June 30, 2021, Accounts receivable - HUD consisted of amounts due from HUD.
Management estimates the amounts to be fully collectible, and therefore no allowance for
doubtful accounts has been established.

Acco Receiv - Tenants, Ne

Tenant accounts receivable represents amounts owed to the Authority by tenants for outstanding
rent. Tenant accounts receivable are stated net of an allowance for doubtful accounts of $80,596
at June 30, 2021.

Accounts Receivable - other government

Accounts receivable - other government consists of amounts due from other housing authorities
related to port-ins in the Section 8 Housing Choice Vouchers program. Management estimates
these amounts to be fully collectible, and therefore no allowance for doubtful accounts has been
established.

Accounts Receivable - Miscellaneous

Accounts receivable - miscellaneous consists primarily of management fees, advances to cover
expenses due from developments and accrued interest. The Authority expects to collect all
miscellaneous receivables and has made no allowance for doubtful accounts.
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HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE TOWNSHIP OF NORTH BERGEN
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021

NOTE 4. RESTRICTED DEPOSITS

Restricted deposits consisted of the following at June 30, 2021:

Cash Category Amount
Tenant security deposits $ 353,034
Housing assistance payment reserves 81,405

Family Self Sufficiency program escrows 16,399

$___450.838
Tenant security deposits represent amounts held by the Authority on behalf of tenants
participating in the Public and Indian Housing Program. Upon termination from the program, the
tenant is due amounts deposited plus interest earned less any amounts charged for damage to the
unit.

Housing assistance payments reserves are restricted for tenant rents in the Section 8 Housing
Choice Vouchers Program.

Family Self Sufficiency ("FSS") program escrows are restricted for use in the Section 8 Housing
Choice Vouchers Program by FSS program participants.

NOTE 5. CAPITAL ASSETS

A summary of the changes in capital assets during the year ended June 30, 2021 is as follows:

June 30, June 30,
Description 2020 Additions  Dispositions  Transfers 2021
Non-depreciable capital assets:
Land $ 1,150,084 §$ - $ - $ - $ 1,150,084
Construction in progress 1,073.885 1,512,279 - (733.800) 1,852,387
Subtotal 2,223,069 1,512,272 - {733.800) 002,441
Depreciable capital assets:
Buildings and improvements 56,112,667 - - 733,800 56,846,467
Furniture and equipment 2,217,263 46,210 - - 2.263.473
Subtotal 58.320.930 46.210 - 733.800 59.109.940
Total capital assets 60,553,899 1,558,482 - - 62,112,381
Less: accumulated depreciation (44.043,101) (1.352.484) - - (45,395.585)
Net capital assets $ 16=§10=28 $ 2053228 $ - $ - $ 16=216=Q6

Depreciation expense for the year ended June 30, 2021 amounted to $1,352,484.
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NOTE 6.

NOTE 7.

HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE TOWNSHIP OF NORTH BERGEN
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021

NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
Long term liabilities had the following activity for the year ended June 30, 2021:
June 30, Retirements/ June 30, Duein
2020 Additions  Contributions 2021 One Year
Accrued compensated
absences $ 109,031 $ 82,065 $ - $ 191,096 $ 19,108
Net pension liability 4,724,736 - 271,541 4,453,195 -
Net OPEB liability 6,662,093 2,810,668 - 9.472.761 -
$_114905860 $2.802.733 $__ 271541 $_14.117.052 $_19,108
PENSION PLAN

A. Plan Description

The PERS is a cost-sharing multiple employer defined benefit pension plan administered by the
State of New Jersey, Division of Pensions and Benefits (the "Division"). For additional information
about PERS, please refer to the Division's Comprehensive Annual Financial Report, which can be
found at https://www.state.nj.us/treasury/pensions/annual-reports.shtml.

B. Benefits

The vesting and benefit provisions are set by N.J.S.A. 43:15A. PERS provides retirement, death
and disability benefits. All benefits vest after ten years of service, except for medical benefits,
which vest after 25 years of service or under the disability provisions of PERS. The following
represents the membership tiers for PERS:

1. Members who were enrolled prior to July 1, 2007

2. Members who were eligible to enroll on or after July 1, 2007 and prior to November 2, 2008
3. Members who were eligible to enroll on or after November 2, 2008 and prior to May 22, 2010
4. Members who were eligible to enroll on or after May 22, 2010 and prior to June 28, 2011

5. Members who were eligible to enroll on or after June 28, 2011

Service retirement benefits of 1/55" of final average salary for each year of service credit is
available to tiers 1 and 2 members upon reaching age 60 and to tier 3 members upon reaching
age 62. Service retirement benefits of 1/60' of final average salary for each year of service credit
is available to tier 4 members upon reaching age 62 and tier 5 members upon reaching age 65.

Early retirement benefits are available to tiers one and two before reaching age 60, tiers 3 and 4
before age 62 with 25 years or more of service credit and tier 5 with 30 or more years of service
credit before age 65. Benefits are reduced by a fraction of a percent for each month a member
retires prior to the age at which a member can receive an unreduced benefit from age 55 to age
60 if they have at least 25 years of service. Deferred retirement is available to members who have
at least 10 years of service credit and have not reached the service retirement age for the
respective tier.
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NOTE 7.

HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE TOWNSHIP OF NORTH BERGEN
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021

PENSION PLAN (continued)
C. Contributions

The contribution policy for PERS is set by N.J.S.A. 43:15A and requires contributions by all active
members and contributing employers. State legislation has modified the amount that is
contributed by the State. The State’s pension contribution is based on an actuarially determined
amount which includes the employer portion of the normal cost and an amortization of the
unfunded accrued liability. Funding for noncontributory group insurance benefits is based on
actual claims paid.

The local employers’ contribution amounts are based on the actuarially determined rate which
includes the normal cost and unfunded accrued liability. Chapter 19, P.L. 2009 provided an option
for local employers of PERS to contribute 50% of the normal and accrued liability contribution
amounts certified for payments due in State fiscal year 2009. Such employers will be credited with
full payment and any such amounts will not be included in their unfunded liability. The actuaries
will determine the unfunded liability of those retirement systems, by employer, for the reduced
normal and accrued liability contributions provided under this law. This unfunded liability will be
paid by the employer in level annual payments over a period of 15 years beginning with the
payments due in the fiscal year ended June 30, 2012 and will be adjusted by the rate of return on
the actuarial value of the assets.

D. Pension Liabilities, Pension Expense, and Deferred Outflows of Resources and
Deferred Inflows of Resources Related to Pensions

At June 30, 2021, the Authority reported a liability of $4,453,195, for its proportionate share of
the net pension liability. The net pension liability was measured as of July 1, 2019, and rolled
forward to June 30, 2020.

For the year ended June 30, 2021, the Authority recognized pension expense of $298,734. At June
30, 2021, the Authority reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources
from the following sources.

Deferred Deferred
Outflows of Inflows of
Resources Resources
Changes of Assumptions $ 144,467 $ 1,864,595
Changes in Proportion 317,539 264,157
Differences between projected and actual experience 81,085 15,748
Net differences between Expected and Actual
Investments 152,214 -
Contributions subsequent to the measurement date 284,205 -
Total $ 979,600  $___ 2,144,500
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HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE TOWNSHIP OF NORTH BERGEN
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021

NOTE 7. PENSION PLAN (continued)

D. Pension Liabilities, Pension Expense, and Deferred Outflows of Resources and
Deferred Inflows of Resources Related to Pensions (continued)

Other amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources
related to pensions will be recognized in pension expense as follows:

Year ending June 30:
2022 $ (433,215)
2023 (394,961)
2024 (225,710)
2025 (91,273)
2026 (19,741)

$ (1,164,900)

E. Actuarial Assumptions

The collective total pension liability at the June 30, 2020 measurement date was determined by
an actuarial valuation as of July 1, 2019, which was rolled forward to June 30, 2020. This actuarial
valuation used the following assumptions.

Inflation Rate:

Price 2.75%

Wage 3.25%
Salary increases: 2.00 - 6.00%

Through 2026 based on years of service

Thereafter 3.00 - 7.00%

based on years of service

Investment rate of return 7.00%

Pre-mortality rates were based on the Pub-2010 General Below-Median Income Employee
mortality table with an 82.2% adjustment for males and 101.4% adjustment for females, and with
future improvement from the base year of 2010 on a generational basis. Post-retirement
mortality rates were based on the Pub-2010 General Below-Median Income Healthy Retiree
mortality table with a 91.4% adjustment for males and 99.7% adjustment for females, and with
future improvement from the base year of 2010 on a generational basis. Disability retirement
rates used to value disabled retirees were based on the Pub-2010 Non-Safety Disabled Retiree
mortality table with a 127.7% adjustment for males and 117.2% adjustment for females, and with
future improvement from the base year of 2010 on a generational basis. Mortality improvement
is based on Scale MP-2020.

The actuarial adjustments used in the July 1, 2019 valuation were based on the results of an
actuarial experience study for the period July 1, 2014 to June 30, 2018.
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NOTE 7.

HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE TOWNSHIP OF NORTH BERGEN
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021

PENSION PLAN (continued)
F. Long-Term Expected Rate of Return

The long-term expected rate of return is determined by the State Treasurer, after consultation
with the Directors of the Division of Investments and the Division of Pensions and Benefits, the
board of trustees and the actuaries. Best estimates of arithmetic real rates of return for each major
asset class, including the PERS'’s target asset allocation as of June 30, 2020, are summarized in
the following table:

Long-Term Expected
Asset Class Target Allocation Rate of Return

U.S. Equity 27.00% 7.71%

Non-U.S. Developed Markets Equity 13.50% 8.57%

Emerging Markets Equity 5.50% 10.23%
Private Equity 13.00% 11.42%
Real Assets 3.00% 9.73%
Real Estate 8.00% 9.56%
High Yield 2.00% 5.95%
Private Credit 8.00% 7.50%
Investment Grade Credit 8.00% 2.67%
Cash Equivalents 4.00% 0.50%
U.S. Treasuries 5.00% 1.94%

Risk Mitigation Strategies 3.00% 3-40%

G. Discount Rate

The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 7.00% as of June 30, 2020. The
projection of cash flows used to determine the discount rate assumed that contributions from plan
members will be made at the current member contributions from employers and the nonemployer
contributing entity will be based on 78% of the actuarially determined contributions for the State
employer and 100% of the actuarially determined contributions for the local employers. Based on
those assumptions, the plan's fiduciary net position was projected to be available to make all
projected future benefit payments of current plan members. Therefore, the long-term expected
rate of return on plan investments was applied to all projected benefit payments to determine the
total pension liability.
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NOTE 7.

NOTE 8.

HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE TOWNSHIP OF NORTH BERGEN
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021

PENSION PLAN (continued)

H. Sensitivity of the Authority's Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability
to Changes in the Discount Rate

The following presents the Authority’s proportionate share of the net pension liability calculated
using the discount rate of 7 percent, as well as what the Authority’s proportionate share of the net
pension liability would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is 1 percentage point
lower (6 percent) or 1 percentage point higher (8 percent) than the current rate.

1% Decrease Discount Rate 1% Increase
(6.00%) (7.00%) (8.00%)
Authority's proportionate share of
the net pension liability $ 5649910 § 4.453.195  $ 3.502.479

OTHER POST-RETIREMENT BENEFITS PLAN
A. Plan Description

The SHBP is a cost-sharing multiple-employer defined benefit OPEB plan administered by the
Division. It covers employees of local government employers that have adopted a resolution to
participate in the SHBP. For additional information about SHBP, please refer to the Division's
Comprehensive Annual Financial Report, which can be found at
https://www.state.nj.us/treasury/pensions/financial-reports.shtml.

B. Benefits

SHBP provides medical and prescription drug to retirees and their covered dependents of the
employers. Under Chapter 88, local employers elect to provide benefit coverage based on the
eligibility rules and regulations promulgated by the State Health Benefits Commission. Chapter
48 allows local employers to establish their own age and service eligibility for employer paid
health benefits coverage for retired employees. Under Chapter 48, the employer may assume the
cost of postretirement medical coverage for employees and their dependents who: 1) retired on a
disability pension; or 2) retired with 25 or more years of services credit in a State of locally
administered retirement system and a period of service of up to 25 years with the employer at the
time of retirement as established by the employer; or 3) retired and reached the age of 65 with 25
or more years of service credit in a State or locally administered retirement system and a period
of service of up to 25 years with the employer at the time of retirement as established by the
employer; or 4) retired and reached age 62 with at least 15 years of service with the employer.
Further, the law provides that the employer paid obligations for retiree coverage may be
determined by means of a collective negotiations agreement.

Pursuant to Chapter 78, P.L., 2011, future retirees eligible for postretirement medical coverage
who have less than 20 years of creditable service on June 28, 2011 will be required to pay a
percentage of the cost of their health care coverage in retirement provided they retire with 25 or
more years of pension service credit. The percentage of the premium for which the retiree will be
responsible will be determined based on the retiree's annual retirement benefit and level of
coverage.
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NOTE 8.

HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE TOWNSHIP OF NORTH BERGEN

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021

OTHER POST-RETIREMENT BENEFITS PLAN (continued)

C. OPEB Liabilities, OPEB Expense, and Deferred Outflows of Resources and

Deferred Inflows of Resources Related to OPEB

At June 30, 2021, the Authority reported a liability of $9,472,761, for its proportionate share of the
net OPEB liability. The net OPEB liability was measured as of June 30, 2019, and rolled forward

to June 30, 2020.

For the year ended June 30, 2021, the Authority recognized an OPEB benefit of $91,535. At
June 30, 2021, the Authority reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of

resources from the following sources.

Deferred Deferred
Outflows of Inflows of
Resources Resources
Changes of Assumptions $ 1,416,827 § 2,106,596
Changes in Proportion 701,080 1,236,719
Differences between projected and actual experience 249,505 1,764,005
Net differences between projected and actual investment
earnings on OPEB plan investments 6,016 -
Contributions subsequent to the measurement date 916,950 -
Total $ 3.200.378 § 5,107,320

Other amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources

related to OPEB will be recognized in OPEB expense as follows:

Amount
Year ending June 30:
2022 $ (295,921)
2023 (295,921)
2024 (296,103)
2025 (296,396)
2026 (296,665)

Thereafter (335.936)
$__ (1.816.942)
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NOTE 8.

HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE TOWNSHIP OF NORTH BERGEN
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021

OTHER POST-RETIREMENT BENEFITS PLAN (continued)
D. Actuarial Assumptions
The total OPEB liability for the June 30, 2020 measurement date was determined by an actuarial

valuation as of June 30, 2019, which was rolled forward to June 30, 2020. This actuarial valuation
used the following assumptions:

Inflation Rate 2.50%

Salary increases: 2.00 t0 6.00%
Through 2026 based on years of service
Thereafter 3.00 to 7.00%

based on years of service

Mortality rates were based on the Pub-2010 General classification headcount weighted mortality
with fully generational mortality improvement projections from the central year using the MP-
2019 scale.

Certain actuarial assumptions used in the July 1, 2019 valuation were based on the results of the
pension plans' experience studies prepared for July 1, 2013 to June 30, 2018. 100% of active
members are considered to participate in the Plan upon retirement.

E. Discount Rate

The discount rate used to measure the total OPEB liability was 2.21% as of June 30, 2020. This
represents the municipal bond return rate chosen by the State. The source is the Bond Buyer Go
20-Bond Municipal Bond Index, which includes tax-exempt general obligation municipal bonds
with an average rating of AA/Aa or higher. As the long-term rate of return is less than the
municipal bond rate, it is not considered in the calculation of the discount rate, rather the
discount rate is set at the municipal bond rate.

F. Sensitivity of the Authority's Proportionate Share of the Net OPEB Liability to
Changes in the Discount Rate

The following presents the Authority’s proportionate share of the net OPEB liability calculated
using the discount rate of 2.21%, as well as what the Authority’s proportionate share of the net
pension liability would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is 1 percentage point
lower (1.21%) or 1 percentage point higher (3.21%) than the current rate.

1% Decrease Discount Rate 1% Increase
(1.21) (2.21) (3.21)
Authority's proportionate share of
the net OPEB liability $__11,198.805 $__9.472.761 $__8.106.440
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HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE TOWNSHIP OF NORTH BERGEN
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021

NOTE 8. OTHER POST-RETIREMENT BENEFITS PLAN (continued)

G. Health Care Trend Assumptions

For pre-Medicare medical benefits, the trend rate is initially 5.6% and decreases to a 4.5% long-
term trend rate after eight years. For post-65 medical benefits, the actual fully-insured Medicare
Advantage trend rates for fiscal year 2021 through 2022 are reflected. The rates used for 2023 and
2024 are 21.83% and 18.53%, respectively, trending to 4.5% for all future years. For prescription
drug benefits, the initial trend rate is 7% and decreases to a 4.5% long-term trend rate after seven
years.

H. Sensitivity of the Authority's Proportionate Share of the Net OPEB Liability to
Changes in the Health Care Trend Rate

The following presents the Authority’s proportionate share of the net OPEB liability calculated
using the healthcare trend rate as disclosed above, as well as what the Authority’s proportionate
share of the net pension liability would be if it were calculated using a healthcare trend rate that is
1 percentage point lower or 1 percentage point higher than the current rate.

1% Decrease Discount Rate 1% Increase
Authority’'s proportionate share of
the net OPEB liability $__7.838.719 $__0.472.761 $_11,612.560

NOTE 9. RESTRICTED NET POSITION

As of June 30, 2021, restricted net position totaled $81,405 and consisted of housing assistance
payments reserves which are restricted for tenant rents in the Section 8 Housing Choice Vouchers
Program.

NOTE 10. RISK MANAGEMENT

The Authority is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage to and
destruction of assets; errors and omissions; injuries to employees; and natural disasters. The
Authority is a member of the New Jersey Public Housing Authorities Joint Insurance Fund
("JIF"). The joint insurance pool is both an insured and self-administered group of housing
authorities established for the purpose of insuring against property damage, general liability,
motor vehicles and equipment liability and workmen's compensation. The JIF will be self-
sustaining through member premiums. There have been no significant reductions in insurance
coverage. Settlement amounts have not exceeded insurance coverage for the year ended June 30,
2021.
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HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE TOWNSHIP OF NORTH BERGEN
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021

NOTE 11. CONTINGENCIES

The Authority receives financial assistance from HUD in the form of grants and subsidies.
Entitlement to the funds is generally conditional upon compliance with terms and conditions of
the grant agreements and applicable regulations, including the expenditure of funds for eligible
purposes. Substantially all grants, entitlements and cost reimbursements are subject to financial
and compliance audits by HUD. As a result of these audits, costs previously reimbursed could be
disallowed and require payments to HUD.

As of June 30, 2021, the Authority estimates that no material liabilities will result from such
audits.

Vulnerability — Impact of COVID-19

The severity of the impact of COVID-19 on the Authority’s operations will depend on a number of
factors, including, but not limited to, the duration and severity of the pandemic and the extent and
severity of the impact on the Authority’s tenants, all of which are uncertain and cannot be
predicted. The Authority’s future results could be adversely impacted by delays in rent collections,
portability payments from certain PHA's as well as grant reimbursements. Management is unable
to predict with absolute certainty the impact of COVID-19 on its financial condition, results of
operations or cash flows.

NOTE 12. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

Events that occur after the financial statement date but before the financial statements were
available to be issued must be evaluated for recognition or disclosure. The effects of subsequent
events that provide evidence about conditions that existed at the financial statement date are
recognized in the accompanying financial statements. Subsequent events which provide evidence
about conditions that existed after the financial statement date require disclosure in the
accompanying notes to the financial statements. Management evaluated the activity of the
Authority through March 18, 2022 (the date the financial statements were available to be issued)
and concluded that no subsequent events have occurred that would require recognition in the
financial statements or disclosure in the notes to the financial statements.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER
FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS
BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

To the Board of Commissioners of the
Housing Authority of the Township of North Bergen:

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America
and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards issued by the
Comptroller General of the United States and audit requirements as prescribed by the Division of Local
Government Services, Department of Community Affairs, State of New Jersey, the financial statements of the
Housing Authority of the Township of North Bergen (the "Authority") as of and for the year ended June 30, 2021
and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the Authority's basic financial
statements, and have issued our report thereon dated March 18, 2022.

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the Authority's internal control
over financial reporting (internal control) to determine the audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinion on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Authority's internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Authority's internal control.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management or
employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct,
misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal
control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the entity’s financial statements
will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a
combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough
to merit attention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this section
and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material weaknesses or
significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any deficiencies in internal
control that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been
identified.



Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the Authority's financial statements are free from
material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts,
and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the determination of
financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an
objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no
instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under Government Auditing
Standards.

Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance and the
results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control or on
compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing
Standards in considering the entity’s internal control and compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not
suitable for any other purpose.

Nowsgndec & Gompouy i4p

March 18, 2022
Toms River, New Jersey

(78]
h



” NOVOGRADAC
‘ & COMPANY LLpPe CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ON COMPLIANCE
FOR EACH MAJOR PROGRAM AND ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER
COMPLIANCE REQUIRED BY THE UNIFORM GUIDANCE AND
STATE OF NEW JERSEY OMB CIRCULAR 15-08

To the Board of Commissioners of the
Housing Authority of the Township of North Bergen:

Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program

We have audited the Housing Authority of the Township of North Bergen's (the "Authority") compliance with the
types of compliance requirements described in the OMB Compliance Supplement and the State of New Jersey OMB
Circular 15-08 that could have a direct and material effect on each of the Authority’s major federal programs for the
year ended June 30, 2021. The Authority’s major federal programs are identified in the summary of auditors’
results section of the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs.

Management’s Responsibility

Management is responsible for compliance with federal statutes, regulations, and the terms and conditions of its
federal awards applicable to its federal programs.

Auditors' Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on compliance for each of the Authority’s major federal programs based
on our audit of the types of compliance requirements referred to above. We conducted our audit of compliance in
accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America; the standards applicable to
financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United
States; and the audit requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative
Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance), and the State of
New Jersey OMB Circular 15-08, Single Audit Policy for Recipients of Federal Grants, State Grants and State Aid.
Those standards and the Uniform Guidance require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether noncompliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above that could
have a direct and material effect on a major federal program occurred. An audit includes examining, on a test basis,
evidence about the Authority’s compliance with those requirements and performing such other procedures as we
considered necessary in the circumstances.

We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion on compliance for each major federal
program. However, our audit does not provide a legal determination of the Authority’s compliance.
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Opinion on Each Major Federal Program

In our opinion, the Authority complied, in all material respects, with the types of compliance requirements referred
to above that could have a direct and material effect on each of its major federal programs for the year ended
June 30, 2021.

Report on Internal Control Over Compliance

Management of the Authority is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal control over
compliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above. In planning and performing our audit of
compliance, we considered the Authority's internal control over compliance with the types of requirements that
could have a direct and material effect on each major federal program to determine the auditing procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing an opinion on compliance for each major federal
program and to test and report on internal control over compliance in accordance with the Uniform Guidance, but
not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of internal control over compliance. Accordingly,
we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the Authority's internal control over compliance.

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over compliance
does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent,
or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program on a timely basis.
A material weakness in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal
control over compliance, such that there is a reasonable possibility that material noncompliance with a type of
compliance requirement of a federal program will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A
significant deficiency in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in
internal control over compliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program that is less severe than
a material weakness in internal control over compliance, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged
with governance.

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph
of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over compliance that might be
material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. We did not identify any deficiencies in internal control over
compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been
identified.

Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of our testing of
internal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the requirements of the Uniform Guidance
and the State of New Jersey OMB Circular 15-08. Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other purpose.

March 18, 2022
Toms River, New Jersey
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HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE TOWNSHIP OF NORTH BERGEN
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021

Federal
Grantor/Program Title

U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development

Housing Voucher Cluster
Section 8 Housing Choice Vouchers
Section 8 Housing Choice Vouchers- CARES Act
Mainstream Vouchers

Total Housing Voucher Cluster

Public and Indian Housing

Public and Indian Housing - CARES Act

Public Housing Capital Fund

Public Housing Family Self-Sufficiency Under
Resident Opportunity and Supportive Services

Total U.S. Department of Housing and Urban
Development

See accompanying notes to schedule of expenditures of federal awards.

Federal
CFDA

Number

14.871
14.HCC
14.879

14.850
14.PHC
14.872

14.870

State
Pass-through
Number

N/A
N/A
N/A

N/A
N/A
N/A

N/A
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Grant Period
EI‘Q!!; l IQ
7/1/20 6/30/21
7/1/20 6/30/21
7/1/20 6/30/21
1/1/19 12/31/21
7/1/20 6/30/21
9/7/18 9/5/25
5/1/20 4/9/23

Grant Fiscal Year Cumulative

Award Expenditures Expenditures

$ 6,136,428 $ 6,136,428 $ 6,136,428
74,516 74,516 74,516
155,049 155,949 155,949
6,366,893 6,366,893 6,366,893
5,940,906 3,537,215 5,606,106
319,417 319,417 319,417
7,380,120 3,512,445 3,512,445
239,250 74.026 74,026
$_20.246.586 $__13.800,006 $__ 15.878.887



HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE TOWNSHIP OF NORTH BERGEN
NOTES TO SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021

NOTE 1. BASIS OF PRESENTATION

The accompanying Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards (the "Schedule") includes the
federal grant activity of the Authority under programs of the federal government for the year ended
June 30, 2021. The information in the Schedule is presented in accordance with the requirements
of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost
Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance) and State of New
Jersey OMB Circular 15-08. Because the Schedule presents only a selected portion of operations of
the Authority, it is not intended to and does not present the net position, changes in net position or
cash flows of the Authority. Therefore, some amounts presented in the Schedule may differ from
amounts presented in, or used in the preparation of the financial statements.

NOTE 2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Expenditures reported on the Schedule are reported on the accrual basis of accounting. Such
expenditures are recognized following the principles contained in the Uniform Guidance and the
State of New Jersey OMB Circular 15-08, wherein certain types of expenditures are not allowable or
are %irlr;]ited as to reimbursement. Pass-through entity identifying numbers are presented where
available.

NOTE 3. INDIRECT COST RATE

The Authority has not elected to use the ten percent de minimis indirect cost rate allowed under the
Uniform Guidance.
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HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE TOWNSHIP OF NORTH BERGEN

NOTES TO SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS (continued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021

STATEMENT OF ACTUAL CAPITAL FUND PROGRAM COSTS AND ADVANCES

The total amounts of Capital Fund Program Costs and Advances incurred and earned by the Authority as of and for the year ended June 30,
2021 are provided herein.

501-17 501-18 501-19 501-20 Totals

Budget $_1000.000 $__2.010.225 $__2.103.360 $__2.266.535 $__7.380.120
Advances:

Cumulative through 6/30/20 $ - $ 1,173,459 $ 519,589 $ - $ 1,693,048

Current Year 1,000,000 836,766 1,130,550 545,129 3.512.445

Cumulative through 6/30/21 1,000,000 2,010,225 1,650,139 545,129 5,205,493
Costs:

Cumulative through 6/30/20 - 1,173,459 519,589 - 1,693,048

Current Year 1,000,000 836.766 1,130.550 545,120 3.512.445

Cumulative through 6/30/21 1,000,000 2,010,225 1,650,139 545,129 5,205,493
Excess / (Deficiency) $ - $ - $ - $ - $ -

NOTES TO SCHEDULE OF CAPITAL FUND PROGRAM COSTS AND ADVANCES

1) Capital Fund Grant No. NJ39L004501-17 with approved funding of $1,000,000, has been fully drawn down and expended as per Capital
Fund Grant Regulations.

2) Capital Fund Grant No. NJ39P004501-18 with approved funding of $2,010,225, has been fullydrawn down and expended as per Capital
Fund Grant Regulations.
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HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE TOWNSHIP OF NORTH BERGEN
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS

JUNE 30, 2021

Summary of Auditors' Results
Financial Statement Section
1. Type of auditors' report issued: Unmodified
2. Internal control over financial reporting

a. Material weakness(es) identified? No

b. Significant deficiency(ies) identified? None reported
3. Noncompliance material to the financial statements? No
Federal Awards Section
1. Internal Control over compliance

a. Material weakness(es) identified? No

b. Significant deficiency(ies) identified? None reported
2. Type of auditors' report on compliance

for major programs: Unmodified

3. Any audit findings disclosed that are required
to be reported in accordance with 2 CFR 200.516(a): No

4. Identification of major programs:
CFDA Number Name of Federal Program

Section 8 Housing Choice Voucher Cluster:

14.871 Section 8 Housing Choice Vouchers Program

14.879 Mainstream Vouchers

14.HCC Section 8 Housing Choice Vouchers Program - CARES Act
5. Dollar threshold used to distinguish between

Type A and Type B Programs: $750,000
6. Auditee qualified as low-risk Auditee? No
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HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE TOWNSHIP OF NORTH BERGEN
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS (continued)
JUNE 30, 2021

11 Financial Statement Findings

There were no findings relating to the financial statements which are required to be reported in accordance
with Government Auditing Standards.

II1. Federal Award Findings and Questioned Costs

There were no findings or questioned costs relating to federal awards.

Iv. Summary of Prior Audit Findings

There were no findings or questioned costs in the prior year.
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HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE TOWNSHIP OF NORTH BERGEN
REQUIRED OTHER POST EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS INFORMATION
JUNE 30, 2021

SCHEDULE OF AUTHORITY CONTRIBUTIONS FOR THE LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS***

June 30, June 30, June 30, June 30,
2018 2019 2020 2021

Statutorily required contribution $ 830,835 $ 889,601 $ 895,987 $ 916,950
Contributions in relation to the statutorily required

contribution 830.835 889,601 895.987 916,950
Contribution deficiency (excess) $ - $ - $ - $ -
Authority's covered-employee payroll $ 2,311,208 $ 2,428,562 $ 2,670,285 $ 2,565,848
Contributions as a percentage of covered-employee

payroll 35.95 % _136.63 % 33.55 % 35.74 %

SCHEDULE OF THE AUTHORITY'S PROPORTIONATE SHARE OF THEIR NET OPEB LIABILITY FOR THE LAST TEN FISCAL
YEARS***

June 30, June 30, June 30, June 30,
2018 2019 2020 2021

Authority's proportion of the net OPEB liability 0.0524 % 0.0512 % 0.0492 % 0.0528 %
Authority's proportionate share of the net OPEB

liability $ 10,702,569 $ 8,017.548 $ 6,662.003 $ 9,472,761
Authority's covered-employee payroll $ 2,311,208 $ 2,428,562 $ 2,670,285 § 2.565.848
Authority's proportionate share of the net OPEB

liability as a percentage of its covered-

employee payroll 463.07 % 330.14 % 249.49 % 369.19 %
Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage of the total

OPEB liability 1.03 % 1.97 % 1.98 % 0.92 %

*** = Until a full 10 year trend is compiled the Authority is presenting information for those years that are available.

See Report of Independent Auditors.
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|North Bergen Housing Authority |
INsoos | T ] T i
|Fingacis! Data Schedule (FDS) . . :
T 1 Tt . = i R ; T T AT
Junie 30, 2021 !
T ; i
R 14.870 Resident |
! Opportunity and . 14.871 Housing  14.879 Mainstream
. Account p Project Total  Supportive Services | Choice Vouchers | Vouch
|Lige tem# ‘ e
,ASSETS:; o ] e ‘
. |CURRENT ASSETS: . o ; |
.l Cahy o ! ~
m _Cash-oumrestricted s 3595 S - S 206977 | $ -
n :Cash - d- and develog - - - -
[TE) |Cash - other restricted e e 81408
114 iCash - tenant rity deposits 353,034 - - -
US| | {Cash - restricted for pay of current liahilities - - 16,399 -
100] | Towml Iush 3,794,629 - 223,376 81,405
i
o ts and notes : I
121 - PHA proj - - - .
122 ivable - HUD other proj e - 56,783 -
124 A ivable - other g { - o 24,944 -
125 | A ivable - miscell: ) - e sy -
126] | |Accounts receivable- tensnts o ; 81,609 - - -
126 ALl for doubtful - tenants - = - -
126 ALl for doubtful - other e - - -
127 Notes and gaps ivable- current - . - - -
128, .. |Fraud recovery I - - - -
128 for doubtful - fraud - - - -
129: | |Accrued interest bl - N - -
120 'I‘o]lul tvables, net of all for doubtful 81,609 - 82,478 -
| :
| |Currenti ments B o |
131 - dcted - . - -
132 lavestments - restricted | - - ; - -
13§ | = restricted for payment of current liability ;. - - - ! -
142] | Prepaid exp and other assets 137,051 . 7,257 | -
'“ i 1, . ; lmr . - - -
143 All for obsolete § ‘ - - - -
144| | Interprogram - due from N - - -
145 Assets held for sale : - - - -
150 TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS N 4,023,289 - 313,111 81,405
A1 — i
NONCURRENT ASSETS: | 1
Fized assets: _i_ o
161 Land | 1,150,084 - - -
162 Building: 56,846,467 L . S -
163 Fumiture, equipment & machinery - dwellings 1,713,021 - 14,707 -
164 quip & hinery - admini i 140,144 e - -
68| . _|Leasehold tmp ts [ S - - -
166, | |Accumulated deprecistion (s,086997) - (14,707) -
167 Construction in Progress 1,852,357 - - -
168 Infrastructure - - - -
160 Total flxed assets, nel of tated dep 16,615,076 - - -
_ .l __Othernon-cursent assets: - R S
17 Notes and mortgages ivable - t _ - [ U S -
m Notes and mortgages current - past due - = - | -
173 Grants Receivable Non Current - I - | -
174 Other assets - - } - -
istributed debits . o - - -
. in joint - - _ - . -
| - - - -
.ToTA  NONCURRENT ASSETS - 16,615,076 - - -
|
) Qutflows of R s : 3,030,991 e 432,194 -
Ll 1 e i
750 TOTAL ASSETS AND DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES | 3669386 § - s 745,305 S 81,405

See Report of Independent Auditors
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|North Bergen Housing Auth
[

|n3004 I o e o _ |

Fi ial Data Schedule (FDS)

1 1T

June 30, 2021

j 14.870 Resident
I Opportunity and 14.871 Housing | 14.879 Mainstream
| \ A t Descrip Project Total Supportive Services| Choice Vouch Vouchers

Line Iten]a #

LIABILITIES AND EQUITY:

Liabilities: I

Current Liabilities:

3 Bank draft $ - $ - s - s .
312 A L ble < 90 days 64,388 - 13,759 -
313 A ts payable > 50 days past due - - - -
321 Accrued wage/payroll taxes payabl 61,206 - - -
322 A d [ b. - current portion 12,848 - 2,515 -
34 Acerued contingency liability - - - -
325 Accrued interest payabk - - - -
n Accounts payable - HUD PHA programs - - 3,707 -
332 A ts payable - PHA projeets - - - -
333 A ts payable - other g 282,817 - 8372 -

34 Tenant rity deposi e 353,034 - - R
342 U d 262 - - .
34 Current portion of L-T debt - capital projects - - - -
34 Current portion of L-T debt - operating borrowings - - - -
345, Othier current lisbilities - - 15,745 -
346 Accrued liabilities - other 185,264 - - -

R 347 Interprogram - due (0 - - - -
348j Loan liability - Current - - - -
3100 |TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES 959,819 - 44,098 -

i [

NONCURRENT LIABILITIES:
3s1 Long-term debt, net of current - capitz! projects - - - -
352 Long-term debt, net of current - operating borrowings - - - -
353 Non-current liabilities- other - - - -
354 Accrued " d ab - 115,639 - 22,645 -
3s5 Loan Liability - Non Current - - - -
356 FASB S Liabilities - - - -
357 Accrued p and OPEB liabilities 10,179,978 - 1,542,463 -
350{ |TOTAL NONCURRENT LIABILITIES 10,295,617 - 1,565,108 -
300 TOTAL LIABILITIES 11,255,436 - 1,609,206 -
400 ferred Inflows of . 5,947,910 - 838,093 -

EQUITY:
508 Invested in Capital Assets, Net of Related Debt 16,615,076 - - -
S11 ri Net Assets - - - 81,405
512 Ui icted Net Assets (10,149,066) - (1,701,994) -
513 TOTAL EQUITY 6,466,010 - (1,701,954 ! 81405
600| |TOTAL LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS AND EQUITY S 23,669,356 § - $ 745,305 | $ 81,405

[ l
Proof of concept - - - -
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North Be Housing Authori
T — - ! | |
Fi iz} Data Schedule (FDS) ) . ) 77~ o - -
June 30,3031 - - - - : — -
]
o 14.PHC Public
} I Housing Cares Act | 14.HCC HCV Cares:
| R Account Descripti Funding Act Funding __ cocc ELIM TOTAL
|uine seemp! | B . a ]
/ASSETS:: | o o
| |CURRENT ASSETS: : o
Cuh:i B o . o o
m Cash- icted s - |s - .8 472,668 | § . s 4,121,240
1m2 Cash - restricted - moderni and develop N - - - _ -
13 Cash - other icted ! - - - 81,405
114 Cash - tenant y & ! - - - 353,034 |
NS, iCash- restricted for payment of curreat Habitities - - - 16,399
100 "Total cash - - 472,668 4,572,078
I
A ts and notes ivabl .
A L - PHA proj ol nd il ol
A i = HUD other projects - _ hd PRS- - 55,783
| 1A ivable - other g1 b hd - U544
‘A ivable - miscell o - - 330,989 331,740
A ivable- tenants - - - 81,609
All for - tenants - - - -
All for doub - other i - - - -
Notes and mortgages current : - - . - _ -
128 Fraud recovery - - - | -
128, AR for d - fraud B - - - -
129] | [Acerued interest receivabl B - - .| -
120 Total reccivables, net of for doubtft _ - - 330,989 495,076
_ \ . j
Current § R _ |
131 Iy, . : N ~ - - - -
132. ‘Investments - restricted - - - -
135 i ents - restricted for p of current liability - - - .
142] . Prepaid expenses and other assets o - - 11,648 | _ 155,956
143 | T _ L - . . - d I lm_
143 ARl for obsolete § _ - - - N
144 Interprogram - due from - - - -
145 \Assets held for sale - - - -
150 TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS - - 815,308 $.233,110
| o
NONCURRENT ASSETS: - B L B
Fixed assets: .
161 {Land o L - - _ - 1,150,084
162 Buildi . - - - 56,846,467
163 F quip & hinery - dwetlings ~ - o - B - _ 1,727,728 |
164 Furni *quip & hinery - admini; . - ~ - 395,601 o 535,745
168 | hold imp - - - PR
166 A dep ti e o - . _(293,881) _ (45,395,585)
167 i Construction in Progress - - - 1,852,357
168 . Infrastructure - - - -
160 Total fized assets, net of d dep i - - 101,720 16,716,796
|
I Other non-current assets: J . -
m, 'Notes and mortgages recei - Ron-current _ ! . - L - - -
1m Notes and gag ivabl t - past due ; - - - -~ -
173 Grants Receivable Non Current o . - | = B - - - -
174 Other assets - . b S o [ s T
178 Undistributed debits . 1 - - - N -
176 In joint ventt - - - _ - _ -
R . | . - .
180! TOTAL NONCURRENT ASSETS ! - - 101,720 16,716,796
[ ! . ! o . o o
200 {‘ fe i d }r‘ flows of Resources o - - 805,793 ' 4,269,978
| o - . e
250/ TOTAL ASSETS AND DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES | § - s - .S 1,723,818 | § s 26,219,884
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North Bergen Housing Authority B
NIoo4 | B ) - -
| Data Schedule (FDS) T o T ‘m
JuMIJO.IZOIIl : T :
[ 1
] " ‘ | | 14.PHC Public ‘
o ' - Housing Cares Act 14.HCC HCV Cares
: A t Description - | Funding . ActFunding COoCC ELIM TOTAL
|Line Ktem # - : 1 B
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY: ‘ R -
Liabifities: | . ] L _ N |
Carvent Liabilitles: . —
3n Bank overdraft ] s - s - |s - s - Is .
312 A ts payable < 90 days - . - - 10123 I R 1.
313 A ts payable > 90 days past due o - - . - |
321 ;Accrued wage/payroll taxes pay i - o - 19,107 B ) - 80,313
322 | | Accrued compensated sbsences - curvent portion ‘ -1 - amws| - 19,108
34 . Accrued contingency liabitity : - - R - .
325! \Accrued interest payabl B i - - ] el -
31 | A payable - HUD PHA progr - - -l - 3707
332 Accounts payable - PHA proj - - - - -
33 Accounts payable - other g - - -l - 291,189
341 Tenant ity deposi o - R - - 353,034
342 Us d . - - - - o - 262
343 | Cusvent portion of L-T debt - capital projects - - - - .
344 | Current portion of L-T debt - operating borrowings ] - . - - S .
345 {Other curvent liabilities - - - ) - 15,745
346 Accrued liabilities - other | - - - - 185,264
347. | Interprogram- due to o ] - - - - -
348, | iLoan Hability - Current o ! - - - | - -
310/ 'TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES 1 - - 32975 | - 1,036,892
IR L . e -
i NONCURRENT LIABILITIES: - 1. - e
_351 Long-termn debt, net of current - capital projects - B - . - -
352 Long-term debt, net of current - operating borrowings - - - - -
353 Non-current Habilitles- other . - - - - .
| 354 Accrued comp d ah - - - - 33,704 - 171,988
355 Loan Liability - Non Current - I - - = -
356 FASB § Liabilities L - - - - -
as? ' Accrued pension and OPEB [iabilities - - 2,203,515 - 13.925.956
350 TOTAL NONCURRENT LIABILITIES - - 2,237,219 - 1409794 |
300 | TOTAL LIABILITIES - - 2,270,194 - 15,134,836
F ] ! ; ] ]
400 Inflows of Resourc 1 - B - 465,817 ) - 7,251,820
l - -
EQUITY: . _ e
508 Invested in Capital Assets, Net of Related Debt oo - - 101,720 - 16,716,796
s11 Restricted Net Assets [ - - - S - 81,405
512 ! f ‘ 'A]_.‘_yg_!_ Assets . L - - (1,113,913) - (12,964.973)
T
: I
| 513/ TOTAL EQUITY - - (1012,193) - 3833.228
600! TOTAL LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS AND EQUITY S - S - S 1,723,818 ' § - S 26,219,884
N i | |
Proof of concept L - ! - - - i -
‘L |
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North Benenﬁomin; Authority

Nsoos  [][[] : !
Fiazacis] Dats Schedule (FDS) ! J .
111 : : -
June 30,2021 " ‘
| [l
1 i 14870 Resident
. : Opportunitysnd | 14871 Housing Cholce 14879 Malnstream
: Account Description OPERATING CAPITAL Supportive Scrvices Vouchers
Linc ltem# | | | |
REVENVE: _ ! ! _
} 70300] iNet tenant rental pevenue s 4656959 | - 's - 1s - -
70400 |Tenant revenue « other i 73224 . . - _
70500| ( | Total tcnant revenue 1 4,730,183 - . N .
) i
70600 {HUD PHA grants __3sas 2,000,173 74,026 4,748,121 237384
70610 |Capitel grats - 1512272 - - -
70710| M fee L - ~ - - - .
70720 | !Asset management fee . - - - - -
70730 - Book keeping fee - i - ! - - -
70740 {Front line service fee - | - - - .
0750 ‘;on.erxm B - ! - . - -
70800, | Other government grants - - - - R
T [ s — - | - - sis -
71200 | Mortgage intervest income - ! - - = -
71300 | Proceeds from di of assets held for sale - i . - .
T1301| (Costofsaleofassets =~~~ - . - - -
71400 | | Fraud secovery - - - 4,022 -
71500 | |Other revenue 1,530,197 - - 12857245 -
71600 ' Gain or less on sale of fixed assets - - - - -
72000| | Investment income - restricted N - . - - -
TOTAL REVENUE 9.797.595 3512445 4026 6.009,933 237354
_ i
EXPENSES: B -
| | Administrative
91100| | |Administrative salaries 1,230,092 106919 - 172500 5402
91200 | | Audising fees 12,000 - - 3,000 N
91300/ | |Outside mangement fees 782,010 - - - N
91310/ | | Book-keeping fee 87,840 - - - .
91400| | |Advertising and merketing 1064 - - - .
91500] | | Employce benefit contributions- sdmiaistrative 605,406 . - - 313,025 -
91600 | 1Office expenses 1136 45364 5456 23,08 -
91700 8l expenses 43,597 - - - -
91800| | [Travel - - - - -
31810 | | Allocated overhead - - - - N
91900/ | |Other 150,851 93,493 - 27500 -
| TTotat Admtststrative 2923.576 248776 $.456 539,089 5,402
92000 | |Asset Management Fee - - - -
Tenant services
92100 ‘Tenant services « salaries 31918 - 50,816 - .
92200 | | |Relocxtion costs - . . - -
92300/ | | {Employee benefit contributions- teaant services 11,552 - 16934 - -
924N Teoxat services « other 20,011 - 820 - -
Tots] Tennnt Services 69.481 - 63.570 - -
Utlities . ]
93100| | | [Water 324383 - . - -]
93200/ | | |Blectricity 891,081 - -1 - N
93300| | | |Gas 280,387 | - - . .
93400| | | |Fuel - | - - - -
93500| | | {Laber . - - - - .
93600/ | | |Sewer 409,846 | - - - .
93700, | | |Employee benefit contributions- utilities_ - - - - -
93800 Other utilities expense - ! - . - -
Total Utilities . 1,305,607 | - - - -
: {
;| |Ordinary malntenance & operation ‘
i !
94190] | | |Ordinary snd operations - labar - Al - . -
94200, _ | |Ordinary matntenznce aod operations - materisls & other 0609 | - - ——= -
94300 Ordinary maintenance and operations - coatract costy . 1,241,017 ! 1,1 lnl‘,;;_'lv; - - -
94500 playec benefit inary - - - - -
|| [Total Ordinary Matntensnce 1,661,626 1114227 - - -
]
[ ., |Protective services
95100} | | |Protective services - lsbor . 687,648 - . - -
95200! ' | |Pratective servicess other contract cocts - - - - -
95300| | | |Protective services - other . n - - - . .
95500 Employee benefit contrib protective services 217.720 - - - -
[ Toul Protective Services 905368 . . N .
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North Bergen Housing Authori o . o
Ngood__ [[][] e e
nmwbm?«mm(ms; B o B .
o 30, 2001 o ’7 -
T
o 14570 Resident
N X Opportunity 2nd | 14.871 Housing Cholce 14879 Mainstream
| Account 7 . ___OPERATING _CAPITAL i Supp Services Vouchers Vouchers
s it o
Geerdepemses o o Lo -
... ._56100; | ' |Insurance premiums __ B 261,826 -
96200 Other general expenses \’ - .
96210] | | |C absenices L : 42746 R
96300, || [Puyments In liew of caes ! 32817 .
96400 | | |Bad debtotrmantreats . - S L N
96500 Bad debt- mortgsges . I I . a - . - -
96600 | | |Bad debt - acher . o -l . - -
J— L - [ -
96710 ' . - R S .
" L - L !
96730| | Amortization of bond Issvecoses - ~ - . - -
96800 | | Severance expense . - - - - -
11| Tots) Geveral Expemses 47,389 - - 26,194 -
96900 ' | | TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES 8,083,047 1,360,003 74026 565,283 s.402
97000 | " |EXCESS OPERATING REVENUE OVER OPERATING EXPENSES 1,744,548 2,152,442 - 5,444,650 231,982
|
Extraordinaty malateazace - - _
97200 | i Casualty boses - ooa tized L - . - e -
97300| | Housing assistance psyments - - - 4,430,580 150,847
97350] | | 'HAP Portability - in o - - - 1,090,565 -
97400] | _:Depreciation expeme o 1316498 IR -y e .
97500| | |iFraudlosses - o - I ) =
___97800| || Dwefling wits reat expense o - | - - - -
I T ; B 1
90000 TOTAL EXPENSES 9369542 | 1.360.003 4026 §136.08 155,949

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)

10010 || Openstisg tramtenin
100201 || Operating tramsters out
10030, | | :Operating transfers from/to primary government
1004| | | Operatiag transters fromfto compenent unit
10070) | |Es itemy, oet 9 o ; -
10080 | | ISpecial items (oet gainflons) ; -
10091 | | | i nter Project excess cash tragsfer ln L A
10092| | | ‘Inter Project excess cash transfer out ¢
10093 i ' Transfers between program and project in ' - - . - -
10094] | Transfers between program sod projectout - - - - -
B ; !
10100 TOTAL OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) L 649,170 | (640.170) - - -
o ; |
10000 EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUE GVER EXPENSES , 1.068.223 | 1.512.212 - (126,495) 81,405
il ;
MEMO ACCOUNT INFORMATION: B ; . .
11020 “Mw@g;wlpnum - . - .
1
U ! SR R .
11050 ; | Begizming equity o ‘ EELEI -l R R T S
e e asuamy]| - - .
T | 1
__ 17 Administrativefee equity 1 . T
IR0 | [Howing assistance paymentsequity . _ ‘ - : - - -
il : . - . . .
11190 . |Unit months avallable L - . - S.434 %0
11210] | Nusaber of uat months leased . - . 4342 130
i |
11T Equisy Ret Forwapd Test: — - )
|1 | Cateutation from RYE Statement _ s 646010 s } - ls. el s muses
| |B/s Line 513 s 6466010 | s - s (.701,9%94) 81,408
! s - s - | - 1s -3 -
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North Bergen Housing Authority - |
N L )
Finaacisl Data Scbedule (FDS) B o 1 | CoT T T
[June 30, 2021 S ) : S —
P :
14.PHC Public
Housing Caves Act 1. HCC HCV Cares
. - _ Account _ Funding Act Funding cocc ELIM TOTAL
Line Ttem # . -
REVENUE: - . i -
_.___ 70300 Net tenxnt reatsl revenve . o 3 o= |8 - |3
70400| Tensat reveaue - other o _ - -
70500] | Total tenazt revenue . R
I
70600 HUDPHAgrants B woan ! 516 ,
70610 Capital gracts B ELEN -
70710, Managemestfee . -
70720 Asset mana fee o e - -
70730 Book kecpingfee o . .
70740, Frontline service fee o=l -
70750] Other fees . - -
76800, _Other government graats R . - -
70100] lnvestmest income - unvestricted . .
. 71200, Mortgage interest Income [N I S - - . .
71300]_Proceeds (rom disposition of ssvets held forsate - - - e -]
71301] Cost of sale of assets B . - . C -
71400{ Fraud recovery o N - - I . L 3
71500 Other revepue _ s - . 206233 - 2,993,675
71600, _Galn or loss on sale of fized nssets - - - . - -
B ]_2_0”! Imvestment income - restricted - - . o -
Hl
70000 TOTAL REVENUE 319,417 74516 LOM98T (369850 20235307
I i
EXPENSES: - - ‘ [
| ) !
Admizuraie L - - N
: - _
9100| _|Administrative salaries } 136,694 4516 330,760 - 2,086,894
91200| |Auditing fres B - - _ 3y . - 18,500
91300; |Outside munagement fees A L= - . (782,010) .
91310, |Book-keeplng fee - . s __(a780) -
91400] |Advertising snd marketing I - . 10,644
91500| |Emplayee benefit contributions- admintstrative 20,508 - 448064 [ - 1,387,000
91600, |Offtce expenses e - . - 224,754 . 299,763
91700 |Legal expenses - - 147,156 - 190,753
91800| | Travel - - 1750 - 1,750
91810] |Allocated overbesd o - - - o - -
91900| | Other o . . 71,509 R 33,653
. [ Total Administrative . 157.199 | 74816 | 1228193 (363.850), 4309357
N ' | .
_ 9200 ‘Asm&lwm?n e : - - -
il - B !
iTemantservices =~~~ L — I
i [ - ! ! — - -1
92100 ' |Tenant services - satatics . - - - 8734
ool costs o - - - - -
92300] : |Emploves beneflt contributionse lenans services - - - . - 28486
92400] | | Tenant services - other o 81,916 - - - 102,747
|| Total Tenunt Services __ 81916 - - - 219967
! utiities e e .
' L o |
93100)  |Water R L . . - 1 - 324353
93200, |Ebectrictty L - - R 91,051
9330, |Gas o - - -1 - 280357
93400)  Fod . e - - - - -
93500| | iLabor _ _ - - - L . d
93600, | iSemer o . - - - 409,846
93700| |  Employee bevefn wilities = - - . -
93%00] | | Otber weilities expense o - - - - -
 Total Utilities o B - - - - 1,905,607
| J\ |
1 v &op - o ) . N
i :
94100} | |Ordinary and vpesstions - labor I - UL - -
94200| | |Ordinary malntenance sad operations - matcrish & uther - U ) S S S 0 (1]
94300 | |Ordinary maintenance and operstions - contract costs -, - - e 2388244
94500, | |Emplayee beneftt erdinary - - - - -
| Total Ordinary b _ - - - - 2775883
i
95100 _ 'Protectiveservices-labor L - : 757476
95200! . |Protective services other contract costs L o .
95300 1 | Protestive services - otber I
95500] | Employee braeft contribution- protective services - . - 28154
| _Total Protective Senices . . - 985,670
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LA —— - JR—
I
P
[ 14PHC Public |
1 b Houstog Cares At | 14.HCC HCV Cares
Account Deseription Fundisg | ActFunding coce ELIM __ToTAL
- Generalespenses . ) R
__ _. %100 _|Insurance premiums . - . - 21489 : 298318
96200 | Other general expenses . - - N ) 9324
96210 Co sbiences. L - - _ 37449 I 82,065
96300 Psymeats in licu of tases o - - - B 242817
96400| | |Bad debt - temant - - - - - LI
96300 Bad debt- mortg, = . - R - . -
__ 96800| ' Bsd debt-other o - - B - . -
96700. | Interest expense B - B - - . -
| 96710] | |Enterest of mortgage (or bonds) payable . - ] R LT -
| 96720] | Intercston Notes Payable (Shortsnd Loog Term) . - - . ! -

. . 96730, | Amortistics of boad lssue costs R - . _ . - -
| _9%R00 | Severance expense . . | - . - U -
o Total General Expenses - - - $2.938 - 672,521

9600 TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES 319417 74,516 1,287,131 869.350) | 10,868,978
97000 . | |[EXCESS OPERATING REVENUE OVER OPERATING EXPENSES - . 297.260) - 9,366,332
_ 9700, ! Extraordinary maintenznce I - - - -
97200 ; |Casualty Josses - non capitalized R - . . LI
‘HJGOE | | Housing assistance payments - - - .
| 97350 |HAPPorusbiliry<in - - - . o
| _374% _  Deprecistion expease . . - 35989 . L
97150 Fraudlosses . - - o - -] -
) i Duwelling mits rent expease _ e - - - . -
— ! . -
90000 ' TOTAL EXPENSES 19417 74516 1323120 369.550) 17,943,151
\OTHER FINANCING SOURCES(USES) . oo .
| 10010 . |Operating eransfers tn - - - (640,170) -
10020 | |Operating transfers out . . - . - om0 -
_ 10030, | |Operating transfers fromilo primary government - - o -, -
10040 | |Operating transfers fromnto wnit - - - - .
_ 10070} . |Extraordinary items, oet gatafoss ——— b — - o= . -
10080, | | Special items (oet gainfions) -, - o - - -
10091 | [Inter Project excess cash tramfer in - I - i -
10092, Inter Project excess cash transfer out - - - - -
10093, Trznsfers between program and project in - - . - .
____ 10094] | |Transfers between program and project out - - - - -
10100 TOTAL OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) - . . . .
il | -
10000/ EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUE OVER EXPENSES . 1T T T asam - 2292156
T . — _ _
MEMO ACCOUNT INFORMATION:
_hoo) bt principalpayments = - S - = -
- - (768.944) - 1,541,072
- - - ! - -
10190] | Unit months vaitable . ! - - - 5964
[[FY] Tmbcrohnm moaths beased - - - - 44712
R Equity Roll Forward Test: I L
. ! | Catculation from R/E Statement o s -'s - 18 . s 3.833.228
| |l /sLisesia R o s - s - 1s - ls 3303228
' S -3 - s . 'S -

See Report of Independent Auditors 52



